

Mayor: Cr K Skinner (Mayor)

Councillors: B Longland (Deputy Mayor)

D Holdom K Milne W Polglase J van Lieshout P Youngblutt

Minutes Planning and Regulation Reports Ordinary Council Meeting Tuesday 17 May 2011

held at Murwillumbah Cultural and Civic Centre commencing at 3.30pm

COUNCIL'S CHARTER

Tweed Shire Council's charter comprises a set of principles that are to guide Council in the carrying out of its functions, in accordance with Section 8 of the Local Government Act, 1993.

Tweed Shire Council has the following charter:

- to provide directly or on behalf of other levels of government, after due consultation, adequate, equitable and appropriate services and facilities for the community and to ensure that those services and facilities are managed efficiently and effectively;
- to exercise community leadership;
- to exercise its functions in a manner that is consistent with and actively promotes the principles of multiculturalism;
- to promote and to provide and plan for the needs of children;
- to properly manage, develop, protect, restore, enhance and conserve the environment of the area for which it is responsible, in a manner that is consistent with and promotes the principles of ecologically sustainable development;
- to have regard to the long term and cumulative effects of its decisions;
- to bear in mind that it is the custodian and trustee of public assets and to effectively account for and manage the assets for which it is responsible;
- to facilitate the involvement of councillors, members of the public, users of facilities and services and council staff in the development, improvement and co-ordination of local government;
- to raise funds for local purposes by the fair imposition of rates, charges and fees, by income earned from investments and, when appropriate, by borrowings and grants;
- to keep the local community and the State government (and through it, the wider community) informed about its activities;
- to ensure that, in the exercise of its regulatory functions, it acts consistently and without bias, particularly where an activity of the council is affected;
- to be a responsible employer.

The Meeting commenced at 3.30pm.

IN ATTENDANCE

Cr K Skinner (Mayor), Cr B Longland (Deputy Mayor), Cr D Holdom, Cr K Milne, Cr W Polglase, Cr J van Lieshout and Cr P Youngblutt.

Also present were Mr Mike Rayner (General Manager), Mr Troy Green (Director Technology & Corporate Services), Mr Stewart Brawley (Acting Director Engineering & Operations), Mr Vince Connell (Director Planning & Regulation), Mr David Oxenham (Director Community & Natural Resources), Mr Neil Baldwin (Manager Corporate Governance/Public Officer), Mrs Meredith Smith (Minutes Secretary until Item 6) and Mrs Kerrie McConnell (Minutes Secretary from Item 7).

REPORTS THROUGH THE GENERAL MANAGER

REPORTS FROM THE DIRECTOR PLANNING AND REGULATION

[PR-CM] Development Application DA10/0480 for the Demolition of Existing Dwellings and Construction of a Function Centre at Lots 9 & 10 Section 4 DP 2974; Nos. 9-11 River Street and Road 5190 Stafford Street, South Murwillumbah

Cr K Milne declared a *non pecuniary, non significant* Interest in Item 6. The nature of the interest is that Cr Milne has a family member who has an interest in the subject industry.

(It was noted that Cr Milne elected to remain in the Chamber for the discussion on this item and therefore participated in voting on the item).

283

Cr W Polglase Cr J van Lieshout

RESOLVED that Development Application DA10/0480 for the demolition of existing dwellings and construction of a refreshment and ancillary function centre at Lots 9 and 10 Section 4 DP 2974; Nos. 9-11 River Street and Road 5190 Stafford Street, South Murwillumbah be approved subject to the following conditions of consent:

GENERAL

1. The development shall be completed in accordance with the Statement of Environmental Effects and Plan Nos wd01 to wd10 prepared by Andrew Reynolds and dated 21/11/10, except where varied by the conditions of this consent.

[GEN0005]

2. The issue of this Development Consent does not certify compliance with the relevant provisions of the Building Code of Australia.

[GEN0115]

3. Approval is given subject to the location of, protection of, and/or any necessary approved modifications to any existing public utilities situated within or adjacent to the subject property.

[GEN0135]

4. Any business or premises proposing to discharge a pollutant discharge greater than or differing from domestic usage is to submit to Council an application for a Trade Waste Licence. This application is to be approved by the General Manager or his delegate prior to any discharge to sewer being commenced. A trade waste application fee will be applicable in accordance with Councils adopted Fees and Charges.

[GEN0190]

5. The development is to be carried out in accordance with Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications.

[GEN0265]

6. The building is to be designed and constructed to withstand the likely flood flow rates and debris loads applicable to the site.

[GENNS01]

PRIOR TO ISSUE OF CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE

7. Section 94 Contributions

Payment of the following contributions pursuant to Section 94 of the Act and the relevant Section 94 Plan.

Pursuant to Clause 146 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulations, 2000, a Construction Certificate shall NOT be issued by a Certifying Authority unless all Section 94 Contributions have been paid and the Certifying Authority has sighted Council's "Contribution Sheet" signed by an authorised officer of Council.

A CURRENT COPY OF THE CONTRIBUTION FEE SHEET ATTACHED TO THIS CONSENT <u>MUST</u> BE PROVIDED AT THE TIME OF PAYMENT.

These charges include indexation provided for in the S94 Plan and will remain fixed for a period of 12 months from the date of this consent and thereafter in accordance with the rates applicable in the current version/edition of the relevant Section 94 Plan current at the time of the payment.

A copy of the Section 94 contribution plans may be inspected at the Civic and Cultural Centres, Tumbulgum Road, Murwillumbah and Brett Street, Tweed Heads.

(a) Tweed Road Contribution Plan:

147.5528 Trips @ \$1601 per Trips (\$1455 base rate + \$146 indexation)

\$236,232

S94 Plan No. 4 Sector10 4

[PCC0215/PSC0175]

8. A certificate of compliance (CC) under Sections 305, 306 and 307 of the Water Management Act 2000 is to be obtained from Council to verify that the necessary requirements for the supply of water and sewerage to the development have been made with the Tweed Shire Council.

Pursuant to Clause 146 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulations, 2000, a Construction Certificate shall NOT be issued by a Certifying Authority unless all Section 64 Contributions have been paid and the Certifying Authority has sighted Council's "Contribution Sheet" and a "Certificate of Compliance" signed by an authorised officer of Council.

Annexed hereto is an information sheet indicating the procedure to follow to obtain a Certificate of Compliance:

Water DSP2: 1.5678 ET @ \$11020 per ET \$17,277.20

Sewer Murwillumbah: 3.7977 ET @ \$5295 per ET \$20,108.80

These charges to remain fixed for a period of twelve (12) months from the date of this consent and thereafter in accordance with the rates applicable in Council's adopted Fees and Charges current at the time of payment.

A CURRENT COPY OF THE CONTRIBUTION FEE SHEET ATTACHED TO THIS CONSENT <u>MUST</u> BE PROVIDED AT THE TIME OF PAYMENT.

Note: The Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 (as amended) makes no provision for works under the Water Management Act 2000 to be certified by an Accredited Certifier.

[PCC0265/PSC0165]

9. Prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate, a cash bond or bank guarantee (unlimited in time) shall be lodged with Council for an amount based on 1% of the value of the works as set out in Council's fees and charges at the time of payment.

The bond may be called up at any time and the funds used to rectify any non-compliance with the conditions of this consent which are not being addressed to the satisfaction of the General Manager or his delegate.

The bond will be refunded, if not expended, when the final Subdivision/Occupation Certificate is issued.

[PCC0275]

10. In accordance with Section 109F(i) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (as amended), a construction certificate for SUBDIVISION WORKS OR BUILDING WORKS shall NOT be issued until any long service levy payable under Section 34 of the Building and Construction Industry Long Service Payments Act, 1986 (or where such levy is payable by instalments, the first instalment of the levy) has been paid. Council is authorised to accept payment. Where payment has been made elsewhere, proof of payment is to be provided.

[PCC0285]

11. All imported fill material shall be from an approved source. Prior to the issue of a construction certificate details of the source of fill, description of material, proposed use of material, documentary evidence that the fill material is free of any contaminants and haul route shall be submitted to Tweed Shire Council for the approval of the General Manager or his delegate.

[PCC0465]

12. Submission for approval by the Principal Certifying Authority design detail including surcharge loads for any retaining walls to be erected on the site in accordance with AS 4678, Tweed Shire Council Development Control Plan Part A1 and Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications.

Design detail is to be supported by certification of adequacy of design from a suitably qualified structural engineer.

Please note timber retaining walls are not permitted.

[PCC0475]

13. All fill is to be graded at a minimum of 1% so that it drains to the street or other approved permanent drainage system and where necessary, perimeter drainage is to be provided. The construction of any retaining wall or cut/fill batter must at no time result in additional ponding occurring within neighbouring properties.

All earthworks shall be contained wholly within the subject land. Detailed engineering plans of cut/fill levels and perimeter drainage shall be submitted with a S68 stormwater application for Council approval.

[PCC0485

14. Prior to the issue of a construction certificate, documentary evidence shall be submitted to Tweed Shire Council demonstrating that a Controlled Activity Approval (CAA) under the Water Management Act 2000 has been obtained for works within 40m of waterfront land (as defined under the Water Management Act 2000) or any works that involve an aquifer interference activity as defined under the Water Management Act 2000.

IPCC0575

15. Site filling and associated drainage is to be designed to address drainage on the site as well as existing stormwater flows onto or through the site, and minimising the impact of filing on local drainage. Detailed engineering plans of fill levels and perimeter drainage shall be submitted for Council approval.

[PCC0675]

- 16. Design detail shall be provided to address the flood compatibility of the proposed structure including the following specific matters:
 - (a) Design Flood Level of RL 7.0m AHD.

- (i) All building materials used below Council's design flood level must not be susceptible to water damage.
- (b) Subject to the requirements of the local electricity supply authority, all electrical wiring, outlets, switches etc. should, to the maximum extent possible be located above the design flood level. All electrical wiring installed below the design flood level should to suitably treated to withstand continuous submergence in water and provide appropriate earth leakage devices.
 - (i) Define adequate provision for the flood free storage for goods and equipment susceptible to water damage.

[PCC0705]

17. Details of the kitchen exhaust system are to be provided and approved prior to release of the Construction Certificate if required. Such details are to include the location of discharge to the air, capture velocity, size and hood and angle of filters. Certification shall be provided by a suitably qualified individual demonstrating the system shall comply with AS1668.2 - Ventilation Requirements.

[PCC0735]

18. A traffic control plan in accordance with AS1742 and RTA publication "Traffic Control at Work Sites" Version 2 shall be prepared by an RTA accredited person and shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to issue of the Construction Certificate. Safe public access shall be provided at all times.

[PCC0865]

19. The proponent shall submit plans and specifications with an application for construction certificate for the following civil works and any associated subsurface overland flow and piped stormwater drainage structures designed in accordance with Councils Development Design and Construction specifications.

URBAN ROAD (delete if not required)

- (a) Construction of an urban bitumen sealed road generally in accordance with the 'Site Plan' by Andrew Reynolds version 'O' for the Stafford Street frontage of the site, with the following provisos;
 - Carriageway width (kerb to kerb) to be 7.5m, unless a greater width is required for 'B99' vehicle turning paths.
 - A kerb line shall be implemented for the northern side of the road.
 - Vehicular footpath crossings shall be provided for off-road driveway access – no kerb and gutter is to be arced across the footpath area.
 - Give way signage and linemarking shall be installed for the Stafford Street legs of the intersection.
- (b) All footpath crossings are to be splayed.

[PCC0875]

- 20. Application shall be made to Tweed Shire Council under Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993 for works pursuant to this consent located within the road reserve. Application shall include engineering plans and specifications undertaken in accordance with Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications for the following required works:
 - (a) Vehicular access: new driveway access from River street (note that this is required to be evenly splayed); also two (2) new driveways from Stafford Street – unless these are constructed in conjunction with the new Stafford Street roadworks.

The above mentioned engineering plan submission must include copies of compliance certificates relied upon and details relevant to but not limited to the following: -

- Road works/furnishings
- Stormwater drainage
- Sediment and erosion control plans
- Location of all services/conduits
- Traffic control plan

[PCC0895]

- 21. Prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate for civil works the following detail in accordance with Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority for approval.
 - (a) copies of compliance certificates relied upon
 - (b) four (4) copies of detailed engineering plans and specifications. The detailed plans shall include but are not limited to the following:
 - earthworks
 - roadworks/furnishings
 - stormwater drainage
 - water supply works
 - sewerage works
 - landscaping works
 - sedimentation and erosion management plans
 - location of all service conduits (water, sewer, electricity supply and telecommunication infrastructure)

The Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 (as amended) makes no provision for works under the Water Management Act 2000 and Section 138 of the Roads Act to be certified by an Accredited Certifier.

[PCC0985]

22. Permanent stormwater quality treatment shall be provided in accordance with the following:

- (a) The Construction Certificate Application shall include a detailed stormwater management plan (SWMP) for the occupational or use stage of the development prepared in accordance with Section D7.07 of Councils *Development Design Specification D7 Stormwater Quality*.
- (b) Permanent stormwater quality treatment shall comply with section 5.5.3 of the Tweed Urban Stormwater Quality Management Plan and Councils Development Design Specification D7 - Stormwater Quality.
- (c) The stormwater and site works shall incorporate water sensitive design principles and where practical, integrated water cycle management.
- (d) Specific Requirements to be detailed within the Construction certificate application include:
 - (i) Shake down area along the haul route immediately before the intersection with the road reserve.

[PCC1105]

- 23. A construction certificate application for works that involve any of the following:
 - connection of a private stormwater drain to a public stormwater drain
 - installation of stormwater quality control devices
 - erosion and sediment control works

will not be approved until prior separate approval to do so has been granted by Council under S68 of the Local Government Act.

- a) Applications for these works must be submitted on Council's standard s68 stormwater drainage application form accompanied by the required attachments and the prescribed fee.
- b) Where Council is requested to issue a construction certificate for civil works associated with a subdivision consent, the abovementioned works can be incorporated as part of the construction certificate application, to enable one single approval to be issued. Separate approval under section 68 of the LG Act will then NOT be required.

[PCC1145]

- 24. Erosion and Sediment Control shall be provided in accordance with the following:
 - (a) The Construction Certificate Application must include a detailed erosion and sediment control plan prepared in accordance with Section D7.07 of *Development Design Specification D7 Stormwater Quality*.

(b) Construction phase erosion and sediment control shall be designed, constructed and operated in accordance with Tweed Shire Council Development Design Specification D7 - Stormwater Quality and its Annexure A - "Code of Practice for Soil and Water Management on Construction Works".

[PCC1155]

25. Prior to issue of construction certificate the applicant is to submit an 'Application for Plan Approval Fit-out Details', with appropriate fees, and to be granted Council approval for the fit-out of the premises.

[PCCNS01]

26. Prior to issue of a construction certificate a report shall be submitted from a suitably qualified acoustic consultant detailing that mechanical plant selection and design has been undertaken in accordance with Section 6.0 of the Environmental Noise Impact Report prepared by CRG Traffic & Acoustics Pty Ltd dated January 2011 (crgref: 10163a report Jan2011). The report shall include recommended noise mitigation measures to be carried out relating to mechanical plant.

[PCCNS02]

27. The development shall provide a transverse drainage system for the continuity of stormwater flows from the open drain on adjoining land to the north, through the development site, to the Stafford Street stormwater drainage system, for all events up to and including the 100 year ARI storm event. Any piped system serving this purpose must be supplemented by an overland flow path that will operate in a manner that will minimise potential damages and nuisance in the event of a pipe failure. Implementation of such an overland flowpath will require localised lowering of the basement driveway to form a depression that gravitates from the northern boundary of the site, in the vicinity of the proposed inlet headwall, through to the Stafford Street frontage. The design of the pipe inlet must include a safety factor of 2 to account for blockage. The s68 Stormwater Application shall include a hydraulic assessment of the transverse drainage system, which demonstrates that the system will provide a "no worsening" post-development case for upstream land for events up to and including the 100 year ARI event. The hydraulic assessment shall include identification of the extent of all contributing catchments, as verified by on site survey. An easement benefitting Council shall be created over the transverse drainage system prior to occupation.

[PCCNS03]

28. The submitted Stormwater Management Plan is not considered to be entirely acceptable, and On-site Stormwater Detention (OSD) is to be implemented. The development shall provide for the mitigation for stormwater runoff generated by the development with the existing downstream stormwater infrastructure in place, in accordance with Development Design Specification D5 - Stormwater Drainage Design Clause D5.16 Stormwater Detention. Engineering details of an adequate OSD system shall be submitted with the s68 Stormwater Application to Council for approval prior to issue of a construction certificate.

OSD devices including the discharge control pit (DCP) are to comply with standards in the last version of The Upper Parramatta River Catchment Trust "On-Site Stormwater Detention Handbook" except that permissible site discharge (PSD) and site storage requirements (SSR) in the handbook do not apply to Tweed Shire.

All stormwater generated from the site must initially be directed to the DCP.

Appropriate ventilation must be provided for any enclosed or covered OSD storage area.

This OSD system is required to be a completely separate stormwater system to the transverse drainage system imposed via the previous consent condition.

[PCCNS04]

- 29. The construction certificate application shall include certified engineering details of the proposed access platform adjacent to Council's levee. The platform shall be of light weight construction and must be readily removable from its structural supports and relocatable without the need for special equipment. No structural supports are permitted within three (3) metres horizontal distance of the surveyed top of the levee embankment. The platform must be designed to impose minimal bearing forces on the levee.
- 30. The developer must obtain all necessary separate State Government approvals for any works on Lot 8126 DP 755698 (State Crown Land).

[PCCNS05]

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK

31. The proponent shall accurately locate and identify any existing sewer main, stormwater line or other underground infrastructure within or adjacent to the site and the Principal Certifying Authority advised of its location and depth prior to commencing works and ensure there shall be no conflict between the proposed development and existing infrastructure prior to start of any works.

[PCW0005]

- 32. Prior to the commencement of works, the applicant shall ensure that a Site-Specific Safety Management Plan and Safe Work Methods for the subject site have been prepared and put in place in accordance with either:-
 - (a) Occupation Health and Safety and Rehabilitation Management Systems Guidelines, 3 Edition, NSW Government, or
 - (b) AS4804 Occupation Health and Safety Management Systems General Guidelines on Principles Systems and Supporting Techniques.
 - (c) WorkCover Regulations 2000

[PCW0025]

- 33. The erection of a building in accordance with a development consent must not be commenced until:
 - (a) a construction certificate for the building work has been issued by the consent authority, the council (if the council is not the consent authority) or an accredited certifier, and
 - (b) the person having the benefit of the development consent has:
 - (i) appointed a principal certifying authority for the building work, and
 - (ii) notified the principal certifying authority that the person will carry out the building work as an owner-builder, if that is the case, and
 - (c) the principal certifying authority has, no later than 2 days before the building work commences:
 - (i) notified the consent authority and the council (if the council is not the consent authority) of his or her appointment, and
 - (ii) notified the person having the benefit of the development consent of any critical stage inspections and other inspections that are to be carried out in respect of the building work, and
 - (d) the person having the benefit of the development consent, if not carrying out the work as an owner-builder, has:
 - (i) appointed a principal contractor for the building work who must be the holder of a contractor licence if any residential work is involved, and
 - (ii) notified the principal certifying authority of any such appointment, and
 - (iii) unless that person is the principal contractor, notified the principal contractor of any critical stage inspection and other inspections that are to be carried out in respect of the building work.

[PCW0215]

34. Prior to work commencing, a "Notice of Commencement of Building or Subdivision Work and Appointment of Principal Certifying Authority" shall be submitted to Council at least 2 days prior to work commencing.

[PCW0225]

- 35. A temporary builder's toilet is to be provided prior to commencement of work at the rate of one (1) closet for every fifteen (15) persons or part of fifteen (15) persons employed at the site. Each toilet provided must be:
 - (a) a standard flushing toilet connected to a public sewer, or
 - (b) if that is not practicable, an accredited sewage management facility approved by the council

[PCW0245]

36. Where prescribed by the provisions of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000, a sign must be erected in a prominent

position on any site on which building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out:

- (a) showing the name, address and telephone number of the principal certifying authority for the work, and
- (b) showing the name of the principal contractor (if any) for any building work and a telephone number on which that person may be contacted outside working hours, and
- (c) stating that unauthorised entry to the site is prohibited.

Any such sign is to be maintained while the building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out, but must be removed when the work has been completed.

[PCW0255]

37. All imported fill material shall be from an approved source. Prior to commencement of filling operations details of the source of the fill, nature of material, proposed use of material and confirmation that further blending, crushing or processing is not to be undertaken shall be submitted to the satisfaction of the General Manager or his delegate.

Once the approved haul route has been identified, payment of the Heavy Haulage Contribution calculated in accordance with Section 94 Plan No 4 will be required prior to commencement of works.

[PCW0375]

38. Please note that while the proposal, subject to the conditions of approval, may comply with the provisions of the Building Code of Australia for persons with disabilities your attention is drawn to the Disability Discrimination Act which may contain requirements in excess of those under the Building Code of Australia. It is therefore recommended that these provisions be investigated prior to start of works to determine the necessity for them to be incorporated within the design.

[PCW0665]

- 39. Civil work in accordance with a development consent must not be commenced until:
 - (a) a construction certificate for the civil work has been issued in accordance with Councils Development Construction Specification C101 by:
 - (i) the consent authority, or
 - (ii) an accredited certifier, and
 - (b) the person having the benefit of the development consent:
 - (i) has appointed a principal certifying authority,
 - (ii) has appointed a Subdivision Works Accredited Certifier (SWAC) accredited in accordance with Tweed Shire Council DCP Part A5 Subdivision Manual, Appendix C with accreditation in accordance with the Building Professionals Board Accreditation Scheme. As a minimum the SWAC shall possess accreditation in the following categories:

- C4: Accredited Certifier Stormwater management facilities construction compliance
- C6: Accredited Certifier Subdivision road and drainage construction compliance

The SWAC shall provide documentary evidence to Council demonstrating current accreditation with the Building Professionals Board prior to approval and issue of any Construction Certificate, and

- (iii) has notified the consent authority and the council (if the council is not the consent authority) of the appointment,
- (iv) a sign detailing the project and containing the names and contact numbers of the Developer, Contractor and Subdivision Works Accredited Certifier is erected and maintained in a prominent position at the entry to the site in accordance with Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications. The sign is to remain in place until the Subdivision Certificate is issued, and
- (c) the person having the benefit of the development consent has given at least 2 days' notice to the council of the person's intention to commence the civil work.

[PCW0815]

40. The proponent shall provide to the PCA copies of Public Risk Liability Insurance to a minimum value of \$10 Million for the period of commencement of works until the completion of the defects liability period.

[PCW0835]

41. Prior to commencement of work on the site all erosion and sedimentation control measures are to be installed and operational including the provision of a "shake down" area where required to the satisfaction of the Principal Certifying Authority.

In addition to these measures the core flute sign provided with the stormwater approval under Section 68 of the Local Government Act is to be clearly displayed on the most prominent position of the sediment fence or erosion control device which promotes awareness of the importance of the erosion and sediment controls provided.

This sign is to remain in position for the duration of the project.

[PCW0985]

42. An application to connect to Council's sewer or carry out plumbing and drainage works, together with any prescribed fees including inspection fees, is to be submitted to and approved by Council prior to the commencement of any building works on the site.

IPCW10651

43. Where any existing sewer junctions are to be disused on the site, the connection point shall be capped off by Council staff. Applications shall be made to Tweed Shire Council and include the payment of fees in

accordance with Councils adopted fees and charges prior to commencing any building works.

[PCW1135]

DURING CONSTRUCTION

44. If during construction works any Aboriginal object or relic is disturbed or uncovered, works are to cease and the Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water are to be notified immediately, in accordance with the provisions of the *National Parks and Wildlife Act 1974*.

[DUR0025]

45. Construction and/or demolition site work including the entering and leaving of vehicles is limited to the following hours, unless otherwise permitted by Council: -

Monday to Saturday from 7.00am to 6.00pm

No work to be carried out on Sundays or Public Holidays

The proponent is responsible to instruct and control subcontractors regarding hours of work.

[DUR0205]

- 46. All reasonable steps shall be taken to muffle and acoustically baffle all plant and equipment. In the event of complaints from the neighbours, which Council deem to be reasonable, the noise from the construction site is not to exceed the following:
 - A. Short Term Period 4 weeks.

 $L_{Aeq,\ 15\ min}$ noise level measured over a period of not less than 15 minutes when the construction site is in operation, must not exceed the background level by more than 20dB(A) at the boundary of the nearest likely affected residence.

B. Long term period - the duration.

 $L_{Aeq,\ 15\ min}$ noise level measured over a period of not less than 15 minutes when the construction site is in operation, must not exceed the background level by more than 15dB(A) at the boundary of the nearest affected residence.

DUR0215]

47. All building work (other than work relating to the erection of a temporary building) must be carried out in accordance with the requirements of the Building Code of Australia (as in force on the date the application for the relevant construction certificate was made).

[DUR0375]

48. Building materials used in the construction of the building are not to be deposited or stored on Council's footpath or road reserve, unless prior approval is obtained from Council.

[DUR0395]

49. The Principal Certifying Authority is to be given a minimum of 48 hours notice prior to any critical stage inspection or any other inspection

nominated by the Principal Certifying Authority via the notice under Section 81A of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

[DUR0405]

50. It is the responsibility of the applicant to restrict public access to the construction works site, construction works or materials or equipment on the site when construction work is not in progress or the site is otherwise unoccupied in accordance with WorkCover NSW requirements and Occupational Health and Safety Regulation 2001.

[DUR0415]

51. All demolition work is to be carried out in accordance with the provisions of Australian Standard AS 2601 "The Demolition of Structures" and to the relevant requirements of the WorkCover NSW, Occupational Health and Safety Regulation 2001.

The proponent shall also observe the guidelines set down under the Department of Environment and Climate Change publication, "A Renovators Guide to the Dangers of Lead" and the Workcover Guidelines on working with asbestos.

IDUR0645

52. Minimum notice of 48 hours shall be given to Tweed Shire Council for the capping of any disused sewer junctions. Tweed Shire Council staff in accordance with the application lodged and upon excavation of the service by the developer shall undertake the works.

[DUR0675]

53. Proposed earthworks shall be carried out in accordance with AS 3798, "Guidelines on Earthworks for Commercial and Residential Developments".

The earthworks shall be monitored by a Registered Geotechnical Testing Consultant to a level 1 standard in accordance with AS 3798. A certificate from a registered Geotechnical Engineer certifying that the filling operations comply with AS3798 shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority upon completion.

[DUR0795]

54. The use of vibratory compaction equipment (other than hand held devices) within 100m of any dwelling house, building or structure is strictly prohibited.

[DUR0815]

55. No soil, sand, gravel, clay or other material shall be disposed of off the site without the prior written approval of Tweed Shire Council General Manager or his delegate.

[DUR0985]

56. The surrounding road carriageways are to be kept clean of any material carried onto the roadway by construction vehicles. Any work carried out by Council to remove material from the roadway will be at the Developers expense and any such costs are payable prior to the issue of a Subdivision Certificate/Occupation Certificate.

[DUR0995]

- 57. All work associated with this approval is to be carried out so as not to impact on the neighbourhood, adjacent premises or the environment. All necessary precautions, covering and protection shall be taken to minimise impact from: -
 - Noise, water or air pollution
 - dust during filling operations and also from construction vehicles
 - material removed from the site by wind

[DUR1005]

58. Where the construction work is on or adjacent to public roads, parks or drainage reserves the development shall provide and maintain all warning signs, lights, barriers and fences in accordance with AS 1742 (Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices). The contractor or property owner shall be adequately insured against Public Risk Liability and shall be responsible for any claims arising from these works.

[DUR1795]

- 59. Before the commencement of the relevant stages of road construction, pavement design detail including reports from a Registered NATA Consultant shall be submitted to Council for approval and demonstrating.
 - (a) That the pavement has been designed in accordance with Tweed Shire Councils Development Design Specification, D2.
 - (b) That the pavement materials to be used comply with the specifications tabled in Tweed Shire Councils Construction Specifications, C242-C245, C247, C248 and C255.
 - (c) That site fill areas have been compacted to the specified standard.
 - (d) That supervision of Bulk Earthworks has been to Level 1 and frequency of field density testing has been completed in accordance with Table 8.1 of AS 3798-1996.

IDUR1805

- 60. During the relevant stages of road construction, tests shall be undertaken by a Registered NATA Geotechnical firm. A report including copies of test results shall be submitted to the PCA prior to the placement of the wearing surface demonstrating:
 - (a) That the pavement layers have been compacted in accordance with Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications.
 - (b) That pavement testing has been completed in accordance with Table 8.1 of AS 3798 including the provision of a core profile for the full depth of the pavement.

[DUR1825]

61. Pram ramps are to be constructed at road intersections in accordance with Council's Standard Drawing No. SD 014 within all kerb types including roll top kerb.

[DUR1855]

62. The footpath area is to be graded to the kerb and turfed for the full frontage of the site.

[DUR1865]

63. Any damage caused to public infrastructure (roads, footpaths, water and sewer mains, power and telephone services etc) during construction of the development shall be repaired in accordance with Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications prior to the issue of a Subdivision Certificate and/or prior to any use or occupation of the buildings.

[DUR1875]

64. Tweed Shire Council shall be given a minimum 24 hours notice to carry out the following compulsory inspections in accordance with Tweed Shire Council Development Control Plan, Part A5 - Subdivision Manual, Appendix D. Inspection fees are based on the rates contained in Council's current Fees and Charges:-

Roadworks

- (a) Pre-construction commencement erosion and sedimentation control measures
- (b) Completion of earthworks
- (c) Excavation of subgrade
- (d) Pavement sub-base
- (e) Pavement pre kerb
- (f) Pavement pre seal
- (g) Pathways, footways, bikeways formwork/reinforcement
- (h) Final inspections on maintenance
- (i) Off Maintenance inspection

Water Reticulation, Sewer Reticulation, Drainage

- (a) Excavation
- (b) Bedding
- (c) Laying/jointing
- (d) Manholes/pits
- (e) Backfilling
- (f) Permanent erosion and sedimentation control measures
- (g) Drainage channels
- (h) Final inspection on maintenance
- (i) Off maintenance

Sewer Pump Station

- (a) Excavation
- (b) Formwork/reinforcement

- (c) Hydraulics
- (d) Mechanical/electrical
- (e) Commissioning on maintenance
- (f) Off maintenance

Council's role is limited to the above mandatory inspections and does <u>NOT</u> include supervision of the works, which is the responsibility of the Developers Supervising Consulting Engineer.

The EP&A Act, 1979 (as amended) makes no provision for works under the Water Management Act 2000 to be certified by an "accredited certifier".

[DUR1895]

65. A garbage storage area shall be provided in accordance with Council's "Code for Storage and Disposal of Garbage and Other Solid Waste".

[DUR2195]

66. All stormwater gully lintels shall have the following notice cast into the top of the lintel: 'DUMP NO RUBBISH, FLOWS INTO CREEK' or similar wording in accordance with Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications.

[DUR2355]

67. Regular inspections shall be carried out by the Supervising Engineer on site to ensure that adequate erosion control measures are in place and in good condition both during and after construction.

Additional inspections are also required by the Supervising Engineer after each storm event to assess the adequacy of the erosion control measures, make good any erosion control devices and clean up any sediment that has left the site or is deposited on public land or in waterways.

This inspection program is to be maintained until the maintenance bond is released or until Council is satisfied that the site is fully rehabilitated.

[DUR2375]

68. During construction, a "satisfactory inspection report" is required to be issued by Council for all s68h2 permanent stormwater quality control devices, prior to backfilling. The proponent shall liaise with Councils Engineering and Operations Division to arrange a suitable inspection.

[DUR2445]

- 69. Council is to be given 24 hours notice for any of the following inspections prior to the next stage of construction:
 - (a) internal drainage, prior to slab preparation;
 - (b) water plumbing rough in, and/or stackwork prior to the erection of brick work or any wall sheeting;
 - (c) external drainage prior to backfilling.
 - (d) completion of work and prior to occupation of the building.

[DUR2485]

70. Plumbing

- (a) A plumbing permit is to be obtained from Council prior to commencement of any plumbing and drainage work.
- (b) The whole of the plumbing and drainage work is to be completed in accordance with the requirements of the NSW Code of Practice for Plumbing and Drainage.

[DUR2495]

71. Back flow prevention devices shall be installed wherever cross connection occurs or is likely to occur. The type of device shall be determined in accordance with AS 3500.1 and shall be maintained in working order and inspected for operational function at intervals not exceeding 12 months in accordance with Section 4.7.2 of this Standard.

IDUR2535

72. Overflow relief gully is to be located clear of the building and at a level not less than 150mm below the lowest fixture within the building and 75mm above finished ground level.

[DUR2545]

- 73. All new hot water installations shall deliver hot water at the outlet of sanitary fixtures used primarily for personal hygiene purposes at a temperature not exceeding:-
 - * 43.5°C for childhood centres, primary and secondary schools and nursing homes or similar facilities for aged, sick or disabled persons; and
 - * 50°C in all other classes of buildings.

A certificate certifying compliance with the above is to be submitted by the licensed plumber on completion of works.

[DUR2555

74. Construction of the facility shall be undertaken in accordance with Section 6.0 of the Environmental Noise Impact Report prepared by CRG Traffic & Acoustics Pty Ltd dated January 2011 (crgref: 10163a report Jan2011).

[DURNS01]

PRIOR TO ISSUE OF OCCUPATION CERTIFICATE

75. A person must not commence occupation or use of the whole or any part of a new building or structure (within the meaning of Section 109H(4)) unless an occupation certificate has been issued in relation to the building or part (maximum 25 penalty units).

[POC0205

76. The building is not to be occupied or a final occupation certificate issued until a fire safety certificate has been issued for the building to the effect that each required essential fire safety measure has been designed and installed in accordance with the relevant standards.

[POC0225]

77. Prior to occupation of the building the property street number is to be clearly identified on the site by way of painted numbering on the street gutter within 1 metre of the access point to the property.

The street number is to be on a white reflective background professionally painted in black numbers 100mm high.

On rural properties or where street guttering is not provided the street number is to be readily identifiable on or near the front entrance to the site.

For multiple allotments having single access points, or other difficult to identify properties, specific arrangements should first be made with Council and emergency services before street number identification is provided.

The above requirement is to assist in property identification by emergency services and the like. Any variations to the above are to be approved by Council prior to the carrying out of the work.

[POC0265]

78. Prior to commencement of operations and on completion of fit out an inspection is to be arranged with Council's Environmental Health Officer for final approval.

[POC0615]

79. The proprietor of the food premises shall provide appropriate notification to the NSW Food Authority prior to commencement of operations by completing the "Notify a Food Business" form under the NAFSIS Heading on the following website www.foodnotify.nsw.gov.au or alternatively by contacting the NSW Food Authority on 1300650124.

[POC0625]

80. The premises is to be treated on completion of fit-out and prior to commencement of trading and thereafter on a regular basis by a Licensed Pest Control Operator. A certificate of treatment is to be made available for Council inspection on request.

[POC0635]

81. Prior to the issue of an occupation certificate, the applicant shall produce a copy of the "satisfactory inspection report" issued by Council for all s68h2 permanent stormwater quality control devices.

[POC0985]

82. Prior to the occupation or use of any building and prior to the issue of any occupation certificate, including an interim occupation certificate a final inspection report is to be obtained from Council in relation to the plumbing and drainage works.

[POC1045]

83. Prior to issue of an occupation certificate, certification from an appropriately qualified acoustic consultant shall be submitted detailing that the construction of the facility has been undertaken in accordance with Section 6.0 of the Environmental Noise Impact Report prepared by CRG Traffic & Acoustics Pty Ltd dated January 2011 (crgref: 10163a report Jan2011).

[POCNS01]

84. Prior to issue of an occupation certificate, certification from an appropriately qualified individual shall be submitted detailing that the construction of the mechanical exhaust ventilation if required, has been installed in accordance with AS16668.2.

[POCNS02]

USE

85. The use to be conducted so as not to cause disruption to the amenity of the locality, particularly by way of the emission of noise, dust and odours or the like.

[USE0125]

86. LAeq noise level emitted from the premises shall not exceed the background noise level in any Octave Band Centre Frequency (31.5Hz - 8kHz inclusive) by more than 5dB between 7.00am and 12.00 midnight at the boundary of any affected residence.

LAeq noise level emitted from the licensed premises shall not exceed the background noise level in any Octave Band Centre Frequency (31.5Hz - 8kHz inclusive) between 12.00 midnight and 7.00am at the boundary of any affected residence.

Notwithstanding compliance with the above, the noise from the licensed premises shall not be audible within any habitable room in any residential premises between the hours of 12.00 midnight and 7.00am.

[USE0165]

87. All externally mounted air conditioning units and other mechanical plant or equipment are to be located so that any noise impact due to their operation which may be or is likely to be experienced by any neighbouring premises is minimised. Notwithstanding this requirement all air conditioning units and other mechanical plant and or equipment is to be acoustically treated or shielded where considered necessary to the satisfaction of the General Manager or his delegate such that the operation of any air conditioning unit, mechanical plant and or equipment does not result in the emission of offensive or intrusive noise.

[USE0175]

88. As per the 'Planning For Entertainment Guidelines 2009) the following condition is REVIEWABLE.

Hours of operation of the business are restricted to the following hours:-

Monday – Thursday 9:30am – 9:30pm Friday 9:30am – 11:00pm

Council Meeting Date: Tuesday 17 May 2011

Saturday 8:00am – 12:00am Sunday 8:00am – 9:30pm

Functions are only permitted on Saturday nights.

[USE0185]

89. All deliveries to the premises are to occur only within the approved hours of operation unless otherwise approved by Councils General Manager or his delegate.

IUSE0195

90. All externally mounted artificial lighting, including security lighting, is to be shielded to the satisfaction of the General Manager or his delegate where necessary or required so as to prevent the spill of light or glare creating a nuisance to neighbouring or adjacent premises.

[USE0225]

91. Upon receipt of a noise complaint that Council deems to be reasonable, the operator/owner is to submit to Council a Noise Impact Study (NIS) carried out by a suitably qualified and practicing acoustic consultant. The NIS is to be submitted to the satisfaction of the General Manager or his delegate. It is to include recommendations for noise attenuation. The operator/owner is to implement the recommendations of the NIS within a timeframe specified by Council's authorised officer.

[USE0245]

92. Any premises used for the storage, preparation or sale of food are to comply with the *Food Act* 2003, FSANZ Food Safety Standards and AS 4674-2004 Design, construction and Fit-out of Food Premises and other requirements of Councils Environmental health Officer included in this approval.

[USE0835]

93. All mechanical ventilation shall comply with AS1668.2 Ventilation Requirements.

[USE0845]

94. All commercial / industrial / residential wastes shall be collected, stored and disposed of in accordance with any approved Waste Management Plan or to the satisfaction of the General Manager or his delegate.

[USE0875]

95. All activities shall be carried out in accordance with the requirements of the NSW Office of Liquor, Gaming and Racing (OLGR).

[USE1085]

96. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the provisions of the Environmental Noise Impact Report prepared by CRG Traffic & Acoustics Pty Ltd dated January 2011 (crgref: 10163a report Jan2011) unless varied by conditions of development consent.

[USENS01]

97. Live entertainment or amplified music is not permitted on the external western and eastern deck areas.

[USENS02]

- 98. The use of the eastern deck area is only permitted between the hours of 9:30am to 6:00pm.
- 99. The function centre component is to have a maximum seating capacity of 79 patrons.
- 100. The dining area for the refreshment room is restricted to the 100.48m² area as depicted on Plan No. wd09 issue O prepared by Andrew Reynolds.

In this regard this consent does not permit either, the owner and/or staff and/or patrons from removing any tables and chairs from the establishment and/or acquiring/purchasing further tables and chairs and placing same on any open outdoor area within the property or riverbank area.

[USENS03]

PRIOR TO ISSUE OF SUBDIVISION CERTIFICATE

101. Prior to the issue of a Subdivision Certificate a defect liability bond (in cash or unlimited time Bank Guarantee) shall be lodged with Council.

The bond shall be based on 5% of the value of the works (minimum as tabled in Council's fees and charges current at the time of payment) which will be held by Council for a period of 6 months from the date on which the Subdivision Certificate is issued. It is the responsibility of the proponent to apply for refund following the remedying of any defects arising within the 6 month period.

[PSC0215]

102. Prior to the issue of a Subdivision Certificate, Work as Executed Plans shall be submitted in accordance with the provisions of Tweed Shire Council's Development Control Plan Part A5 - Subdivision Manual and Council's Development Design Specification, D13 - Engineering Plans.

The plans are to be endorsed by a Registered Surveyor OR a Consulting Engineer Certifying that:

- (a) all drainage lines, sewer lines, services and structures are wholly contained within the relevant easement created by the subdivision;
- (b) the plans accurately reflect the Work as Executed.

Note: Where works are carried out by Council on behalf of the developer it is the responsibility of the <u>DEVELOPER</u> to prepare and submit works-as-executed (WAX) plans.

[PSC0735]

- 103. The creation of easements for services, rights of carriageway and restrictions as to user as may be applicable under Section 88B of the Conveyancing Act including (but not limited to) the following:
 - (a) Easements for sewer, water supply and drainage over ALL public services/infrastructure on private property.
 - (b) Identify all allotments to be created as dual occupancies.
 - (c) An easement in favour of Tweed Shire Council shall be created over the full length of the flood levee within the subject land. The

easement width shall extend from the rear (north western) boundary to three (3) metres (measured horizontally) on the landward side of the surveyed top of the levee embankment.

- (d) Creation of an inter-allotment drainage easement over a pipeline and overland flowpath (beneath the building) that is to be constructed as part of this development.
- (e) Restriction on Title and companion Positive Covenant to be created regarding on-site Stormwater Detention perpetual maintenance requirements. Information in this regard can be obtained from the last version of The Upper Parramatta River Catchment Trust "On-Site Stormwater Detention Handbook".

Pursuant to Section 88BA of the Conveyancing Act (as amended) the Instrument creating the right of carriageway/easement to drain water shall make provision for maintenance of the right of carriageway/easement by the owners from time to time of the land benefited and burdened and are to share costs equally or proportionally on an equitable basis.

Any Section 88B Instrument creating restrictions as to user, rights of carriageway or easements which benefit Council shall contain a provision enabling such restrictions, easements or rights of way to be revoked, varied or modified only with the consent of Council.

Privately owned infrastructure on community land may be subject to the creation of statutory restrictions, easements etc in accordance with the Community Land Development Act, Strata Titles Act, Conveyancing Act, or other applicable legislation.

[PSC0835]

104. Council's standard "Asset Creation Form" shall be completed (including all quantities and unit rates) and submitted to Council with the application for Subdivision Certificate.

[PSC0855]

- 105. Prior to the application for a Subdivision Certificate a Compliance Certificate or Certificates shall be obtained from Council OR an accredited certifier for the following:-
 - (a) Compliance Certificate Roads
 - (b) Compliance Certificate Drainage

Note:

1. All compliance certificate applications must be accompanied by documentary evidence from the developers Subdivision Works Accredited Certifier (SWAC) certifying that the specific work for which a certificate is sought has been completed in accordance with the terms of the development consent, the construction certificate, Tweed Shire Council's Development Control Plan Part A5 - Subdivisions Manual and Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications.

2. The EP&A Act, 1979 (as amended) makes no provision for works under the Water Management Act 2000 to be certified by an "accredited certifier".

[PSC0915]

106. The six (6) months Defects Liability Period commences upon the registration of the Plan of Subdivision.

[PSC0925]

107. The site is to be consolidated into a single allotment. Concurrently with this, a 3m x 3m splay corner is required to be dedicated to Council as public road.

[PSCNS01]

The Motion was Carried

FOR VOTE - Cr P Youngblutt, Cr W Polglase, Cr B Longland, Cr J van Lieshout, Cr K Skinner AGAINST VOTE - Cr D Holdom, Cr K Milne

7 [PR-CM] Variations to Development Standards under State Environmental Planning Policy No. 1 - Development Standards

284

Cr K Milne Cr B Longland

RESOLVED that Council notes the April 2011 Variations to Development Standards under State Environmental Planning Policy No. 1 - Development Standards.

Cr P Youngblutt left the meeting at 04:45 PM

FOR VOTE - Voting - Unanimous ABSENT. DID NOT VOTE - Cr P Youngblutt

8 [PR-CM] Development Application DA11/0095 for The Unity Festival at Lot 167 DP 729468, Queensland Road, Murwillumbah

285

Cr D Holdom Cr W Polglase

RESOLVED that Council's fees associated with Development Application DA11/0095 for *The Unity Festival* at Lot 167 DP 729468, Queensland Road, Murwillumbah be donated to The Unity Festival Incorporated as the donation

policy permits no more than two (2) donations within any consecutive three (3) year period, with this the second donation to the organisation within that period.

The Motion was Carried

FOR VOTE - Voting - Unanimous ABSENT. DID NOT VOTE - Cr P Youngblutt

Cr P Youngblutt has returned from temporary absence at 04:47 PM

9 [PR-CM] Development Application DA11/0176 for a Gazebo and Pool Pump House at Lot 5 DP 1047760, No. 9 Winchelsea Way, Terranora

Cr B Longland declared a perceived *non-significant, non-pecuniary* Interest in this item, left the Chamber and took no part in the discussion or voting. The nature of the interest is that Cr Longland has been friends with the family who is the applicant.

286

Cr D Holdom Cr W Polglase

RESOLVED that:

- 1. State Environmental Planning Policy No. 1 objection to Clause 24 of Tweed Local Environmental Plan 2000 regarding setbacks to designated roads be supported and the concurrence of the Director-General of the Department of Planning and Infrastructure be assumed.
- 2. Development Application DA11/0176 for a gazebo and pool pump house at Lot 5 DP 1047760, No. 9 Winchelsea Way, Terranora be approved subject to the following conditions:

GENERAL

1. The development shall be completed in accordance with the plans approved by Council and the Statement of Environmental Effects, except where varied by conditions of this consent.

[GEN0015]

2. The issue of this Development Consent does not certify compliance with the relevant provisions of the Building Code of Australia.

[GEN0115]

3. Approval is given subject to the location of, protection of, and/or any necessary approved modifications to any existing public utilities situated within or adjacent to the subject property.

[GEN0135]

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK

4. The proponent shall accurately locate and identify any existing sewer main, stormwater line or other underground infrastructure within or adjacent to the site and the Principal Certifying Authority advised of its location and depth prior to commencing works and ensure there shall be no conflict between the proposed development and existing infrastructure prior to start of any works.

[PCW0005]

- 5. The erection of a building in accordance with a development consent must not be commenced until:
 - (a) a construction certificate for the building work has been issued by the consent authority, the council (if the council is not the consent authority) or an accredited certifier, and
 - (b) the person having the benefit of the development consent has:
 - (i) appointed a principal certifying authority for the building work, and
 - (ii) notified the principal certifying authority that the person will carry out the building work as an owner-builder, if that is the case, and
 - (c) the principal certifying authority has, no later than 2 days before the building work commences:
 - (i) notified the consent authority and the council (if the council is not the consent authority) of his or her appointment, and
 - (ii) notified the person having the benefit of the development consent of any critical stage inspections and other inspections that are to be carried out in respect of the building work, and
 - (d) the person having the benefit of the development consent, if not carrying out the work as an owner-builder, has:
 - (i) appointed a principal contractor for the building work who must be the holder of a contractor licence if any residential work is involved, and
 - (ii) notified the principal certifying authority of any such appointment, and
 - (iii) unless that person is the principal contractor, notified the principal contractor of any critical stage inspection and other inspections that are to be carried out in respect of the building work.

[PCW0215]

6. Prior to work commencing, a "Notice of Commencement of Building or Subdivision Work and Appointment of Principal Certifying Authority" shall be submitted to Council at least 2 days prior to work commencing.

[PCW0225]

- 7. Residential building work:
 - (a) Residential building work within the meaning of the <u>Home Building Act 1989</u> must not be carried out unless the principal certifying authority for the development to which the work relates (not being the council) has given the council written notice of the following information:
 - (i) in the case of work for which a principal contractor is required to be appointed:
 - * in the name and licence number of the principal contractor, and
 - * the name of the insurer by which the work is insured under Part 6 of that Act,
 - (ii) in the case of work to be done by an owner-builder:
 - * the name of the owner-builder, and
 - * if the owner-builder is required to hold an owner builder permit under that Act, the number of the owner-builder permit.
 - (b) If arrangements for doing the residential building work are changed while the work is in progress so that the information notified under subclause (1) becomes out of date, further work must not be carried out unless the principal certifying authority for the development to which the work relates (not being the council) has given the council written notice of the updated information.

[PCW0235]

- 8. Where prescribed by the provisions of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000, a sign must be erected in a prominent position on any site on which building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out:
 - (a) showing the name, address and telephone number of the principal certifying authority for the work, and
 - (b) showing the name of the principal contractor (if any) for any building work and a telephone number on which that person may be contacted outside working hours, and
 - (c) stating that unauthorised entry to the site is prohibited.

Any such sign is to be maintained while the building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out, but must be removed when the work has been completed.

[PCW0255]

DURING CONSTRUCTION

 All proposed works are to be carried out in accordance with the conditions of development consent, approved construction certificate, drawings and specifications.

[DUR0005]

 Construction and/or demolition site work including the entering and leaving of vehicles is limited to the following hours, unless otherwise permitted by Council: -

Monday to Saturday from 7.00am to 6.00pm

No work to be carried out on Sundays or Public Holidays

The proponent is responsible to instruct and control subcontractors regarding hours of work.

[DUR0205]

11. The wall and roof cladding is to have low reflectivity where they would otherwise cause nuisance to the occupants of buildings with direct line of sight to the proposed building.

[DUR0245]

12. All building work (other than work relating to the erection of a temporary building) must be carried out in accordance with the requirements of the Building Code of Australia (as in force on the date the application for the relevant construction certificate was made).

[DUR0375]

13. Building materials used in the construction of the building are not to be deposited or stored on Council's footpath or road reserve, unless prior approval is obtained from Council.

[DUR0395]

14. The Principal Certifying Authority is to be given a minimum of 48 hours notice prior to any critical stage inspection or any other inspection nominated by the Principal Certifying Authority via the notice under Section 81A of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

[DUR0405]

15. It is the responsibility of the applicant to restrict public access to the construction works site, construction works or materials or equipment on the site when construction work is not in progress or the site is otherwise unoccupied in accordance with WorkCover NSW requirements and Occupational Health and Safety Regulation 2001.

[DUR0415]

- 16. All work associated with this approval is to be carried out so as not to impact on the neighbourhood, adjacent premises or the environment. All necessary precautions, covering and protection shall be taken to minimise impact from: -
 - Noise, water or air pollution

- dust during filling operations and also from construction vehicles
- material removed from the site by wind

[DUR1005]

17. Any damage caused to public infrastructure (roads, footpaths, water and sewer mains, power and telephone services etc) during construction of the development shall be repaired in accordance with Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications prior to the issue of a Subdivision Certificate and/or prior to any use or occupation of the buildings.

[DUR1875]

18. The builder must provide an adequate trade waste service to ensure that all waste material is contained, and removed from the site for the period of construction/demolition.

[DUR2185]

19. The additional rainwater drains must be connected to the existing rainwater disposal system; to provide satisfactory stormwater disposal in accordance with Australian Standard AS/NZS3500.3.2.

[DUR2255]

- 20. Council is to be given 24 hours notice for any of the following inspections prior to the next stage of construction:
 - (a) internal drainage, prior to slab preparation;
 - (b) water plumbing rough in, and/or stackwork prior to the erection of brick work or any wall sheeting;
 - (c) external drainage prior to backfilling.
 - (d) completion of work and prior to occupation of the building.

[DUR2485]

21. Plumbing

- (a) A plumbing permit is to be obtained from Council prior to commencement of any plumbing and drainage work.
- (b) The whole of the plumbing and drainage work is to be completed in accordance with the requirements of the NSW Code of Practice for Plumbing and Drainage.

[DUR2495]

PRIOR TO ISSUE OF OCCUPATION CERTIFICATE

22. A person must not commence occupation or use of the whole or any part of a new building or structure (within the meaning of Section 109H(4)) unless an occupation certificate has been issued in relation to the building or part (maximum 25 penalty units).

[POC0205]

23. Prior to the occupation or use of any building and prior to the issue of any occupation certificate, including an interim occupation certificate

a final inspection report is to be obtained from Council in relation to the plumbing and drainage works.

[POC1045]

24. Prior to the issue of a final occupation certificate, all conditions of consent are to be met.

[POC1055]

USE

25. The use to be conducted so as not to cause disruption to the amenity of the locality, particularly by way of the emission of noise, dust and odours or the like.

[USE0125]

26. The building is not to be used for any habitable commercial or industrial purpose.

[USE0455]

The Motion was Carried

FOR VOTE - Cr P Youngblutt, Cr W Polglase, Cr D Holdom, Cr J van Lieshout, Cr K Skinner AGAINST VOTE - Cr K Milne ABSENT. DID NOT VOTE - Cr B Longland

Cr B Longland has returned from temporary absence at 04:50 PM

10 [PR-CM] Part V Application PTV10/0032 for Kirkwood Road Extension from Fraser Drive west of the Pacific Highway to Minjungbal Drive to the east including Highway on & off Ramps at Lot 697 DP47411, ROAD 2920 Kirkwood Road; Lot 33 DP 1073293 Firetail Stree

287

Cr W Polglase Cr P Youngblutt

RESOLVED that Part V Application PTV10/0032 for Kirkwood Road extension from Fraser Drive west of the Pacific Highway to Minjungbal Drive to the east including highway on and off ramps at Lot 697 DP 47411, ROAD 2920 Kirkwood Road; Lot 33 DP 1073293 Firetail Street; ROAD 944 Pacific Highway, Tweed Heads South be approved subject to the following conditions:

 The development shall be completed in general accordance with the Review of Environmental Factors prepared by Tweed Shire Council Design Unit dated December 2010, and Project Modifications prepared by Tweed Shire Council Design Unit dated April 2011, except where varied by these conditions.

[PTV0010]

2. All work associated with this approval is to be carried out so as not to cause a nuisance to residents in the locality from noise, water or air pollution.

[PTV0030]

3. All necessary precautions shall be taken to minimise impact from dust during filling operations from the site and also from construction vehicles.

[PTV0040]

4. Construction and/or demolition site work including the entering and leaving of vehicles is limited to the following hours, unless otherwise permitted by Council: -

Monday to Saturday from 7.00am to 6.00pm

No work to be carried out on Sundays or Public Holidays

The proponent is responsible to instruct and control subcontractors regarding hours of work.

[PTV0050]

- 5. All reasonable steps shall be taken to muffle and acoustically baffle all plant and equipment. In the event of complaints from the neighbours, which Council deem to be reasonable, the noise from the construction site is not to exceed the following:
 - A. Short Term Period 4 weeks.

 $L_{Aeq,\ 15\ min}$ noise level measured over a period of not less than 15 minutes when the construction site is in operation, must not exceed the background level by more than 20dB(A) at the boundary of the nearest likely affected residence.

B. Long term period – the duration.

 $L_{Aeq,\ 15\ min}$ noise level measured over a period of not less than 15 minutes when the construction site is in operation, must not exceed the background level by more than 15dB(A) at the boundary of the nearest affected residence.

[PTV0060]

- 6. Prior to works commencing on the North Bound Off Ramp in stage 2 of the project, a Detailed Site Contamination Investigation is required in areas identified in Section 6 of the Kirkwood Road Project Review of Environmental Factors December 2010, and if required a Remediation Action Plan, prepared by a qualified Environmental Consultant in accordance with the NSW Department of Environmental, Climate Change and Water's Contaminated Lands Guidelines shall be submitted to Council for review and approval. Construction works in this area shall not commence until this report has been reviewed and approved by the General Manager or his Delegate.
- 7. All works shall be carried out in accordance with any approved Remediation Action Plan or to the satisfaction of Council's General Manager or his delegate. Upon completion of remediation works, Council shall be provided with a Post Remediation Validation Report to the satisfaction of the General Manager or his delegate. Construction works

- shall not commence until this report has been reviewed and approved by the General Manager or his delegate.
- 8. Prior to any works commencing, an Acid Sulfate Soil Management Plan for the site prepared by a qualified environmental consultant in accordance with the NSW ASSMAC Guidelines shall be submitted to Council for review and approval. Construction works shall not commence until this report has been reviewed and approved by the General Manager or his delegate.
- 9. All works shall be carried out in accordance with an approved Acid Sulfate Soil Investigation and Management Plan or to the satisfaction of Council's General Manager or his delegate.
- 10. The site shall not be dewatered, unless written approval to carry out dewatering operations is received from Council's General Manager or his delegate.
- 11. Prior to any works commencing, a Dust Monitoring Program prepared in accordance with the DECCW Guidelines is to be established to obtain baseline data to be used as a reference during the construction phase. A copy of this Program shall be provided to Council.
- 12. All works shall be carried out in accordance with the Dust Monitoring Program or to the satisfaction of Council's General Manager or delegate.
- 13. Prior to any works commencing, an Acoustic Report for the proposed acoustic barrier along the existing section of Kirkwood Road (rear of 20-56 Blundell Boulevard) prepared by a qualified acoustic consultant in accordance with the NSW RTA Environmental Noise Management Manual and current Office of Environment and Heritage (formerly NSW Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water) Guidelines shall be submitted to Council's General Manager or his delegate for review and approval. The report shall include traffic volumes that will trigger the installation of the barriers.
- 14. All works shall be carried out in accordance with the Mitigation Measures outlined in Section 6.6.8 of the Kirkwood Road Project Falcon Way to Fraser Drive, Tweed Heads South Review of Environmental Factors prepared by Tweed Shire Council dated December 2010, Acoustic Assessment Kirkwood Road Extension prepared by Air Noise Environment Pty Ltd dated December 2010, Additional Mitigation Scenario Kirkwood Road Extension prepared by Air Noise Environment Pty Ltd dated 14 December 2010, the Acoustic Report for the proposed acoustic barrier along the existing section of Kirkwood Road (rear of 20-56 Blundell Boulevard) and any addendums to these documents as approved by Council's General Manager or his delegate.
- 15. Immediately following the operation of each Stage of the Kirkwood Road Project, or in the case of the proposed acoustic barrier to the rear of 20-56 Blundell Boulevard the completion of recommendations of the acoustic report, Post Construction Noise Impact Compliance Assessment reports from a suitably qualified acoustic consultant shall be prepared and submitted for consideration and approval by Council's General Manager

or delegate in respect to noise associated with the Kirkwood Road Project.

The assessment reports shall consider the mitigation measures outlined in Section 6.6.8 of the Kirkwood Road Project – Falcon Way to Fraser Drive, Tweed Heads South - Review of Environmental Factors prepared by Tweed Shire Council dated December 2010, Acoustic Assessment -Kirkwood Road Extension prepared by Air Noise Environment Pty Ltd dated December 2010, Additional Mitigation Scenario - Kirkwood Road Extension prepared by Air Noise Environment Pty Ltd dated 14 December 2010 (Ref: 2451replet01), the acoustic report for the proposed acoustic barrier along the existing section of Kirkwood Road (rear of 20-56 Blundell Boulevard), and any addendums to these documents as approved by Council's General Manager or his delegate, and include any recommended noise amelioration measures to be carried out by the applicant. The report shall be submitted within a period not exceeding 60 days of the date of operation of each Stage (or completion of recommendations of the acoustic report for the proposed acoustic barrier to the rear of 20-56 Blundell Boulevard).

The applicant shall carry out any such recommendations as provided within the noise assessment reports to the satisfaction of the General Manager or delegate within 30 days from the date of the acoustic assessment of each Stage (or completion of recommendations of the Acoustic Report for the proposed acoustic barrier to the rear of 20-56 Blundell Boulevard), provided that the General Manager or delegate may extend the time period for the carrying out of any recommended acoustic treatment to a date which may be determined by the General Manager or delegate.

- 16. All imported fill material shall be from an approved source. Prior to works commencing, details of the source of fill, description of material, proposed use of material, documentary evidence that the fill material is free of any contaminants and haul route shall be submitted to Council for the approval of the General Manager or his delegate.
- 17. It is the responsibility of the applicant to restrict public access to the construction works site, construction works or materials or equipment on the site when construction work is not in progress or the site is otherwise unoccupied in accordance with WorkCover NSW requirements and Occupational Health and Safety Regulation 2001.
- 18. Prior to the commencement of works, a construction waste management plan is to be provided to Council. The waste management plan is to include:

a. Demolition

- i) The volume and type of waste generated during demolition.
- ii) The methods of storage of material on site. A site plan should be included.
- iii) How recyclable materials will be separated, managed, and where the materials will be sent for recycling.

- iv) The location and methods of disposal of all residual waste.
- v) The licensed transporter of the waste.

b. Construction

- i) The type of waste generated during construction.
- ii) The method and location of waste storage on site.
- iii) How any recyclable materials will be managed.
- iv) The location of the disposal facility for residual waste.

During the demolition and construction phases it is the responsibility of the site manager to ensure that the above management measures are inspected and maintained on a daily basis.

- 19. The landscaping design plan for the site is to address the interaction between the development and the public park and footpaths in Lot 36 DP 1069519 and Lot 40 DP 1069551. In particular, the landscape design plan is to address the playground to be constructed on Lot 40 DP 1069551 with respect to the Playground Risk rating strategy.
- 20. A Habitat Restoration Plan must be prepared for the vegetation offset sites nominated as 1A (Kirkwood Road) and site 2A (Lot 1327//1005077) within six months of the date of this approval. Such plan must be prepared in accordance with Council's *draft Habitat Restoration Guidelines* and submitted to Council's Development Assessment Unit for approval. Such plan must describe how restoration works will be funded for a minimum 5 year period whilst restoration is undertaken and how the site will be managed thereafter.
- 21. Within six months of the date of this approval, the applicant must commence the process of re-categorisation of offset site 2A (Lot 1327//1005077) to *Natural Area / Bushland* and prepare a Plan of Management in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act (note that the Habitat Restoration Plan may include these requirements within the one plan).
- 22. A registered Spotter-catcher must be present on site during all works that involve the clearing of native vegetation so as to minimise impacts to native fauna.
- 23. A Compensatory Fauna Nest-Box Plan must be submitted to Council's Development Assessment Unit for approval within six months of the date of this approval. All reasonable opportunities to re-use hollows removed from trees on the site must be taken.
- 24. Any part of the activities with the potential to trigger a Fisheries Permit must be discussed with the Department of Industry and Investment (Fisheries) and such a permit applied for if directed by Fisheries.
- 25. Native vegetation must not be removed outside that area strictly required for works directly associated with the project as described in the Review of Environmental Factors and associated documents submitted with the application.

26. Works must comply with the recommendations Cultural Heritage Assessment for the Kirkwood Road Extension project by Converge dated 20/12/10.

- 27. A Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) is to be prepared for the construction phase of the development. The Construction Environmental Management Plan is to be prepared in accordance with the Review of Environmental Factors and associated documentation submitted with this application and is to detail proposed environmental impact avoidance and mitigation measures and monitoring programs.
- 28. A suitably qualified Environmental Officer, that is be nominated and approved by Council's Development Assessment Unit, shall be engaged by the proponent for the duration of the construction works as detailed in the CEMP. Their role shall be to oversee the environmental compliance of the project until completion and to act as a liaison officer to consult with complainants in relation to the project impacts during construction works.
- 29. A traffic control plan in accordance with AS1742 and RTA publication "Traffic Control at Work Sites" Version 2 shall be prepared by an RTA accredited person and shall be complied with during all phases of the project. Safe public access shall be provided at all times.
- 30. Construction phase erosion and sediment control shall be designed, constructed and operated in accordance with Tweed Shire Council Development Design Specification D7 Stormwater Quality and its Annexure A "Code of Practice for Soil and Water Management on Construction Works".
- 31. During construction, all works required by other conditions or approved management plans or the like shall be installed and operated in accordance with those conditions or plans.
- 32. A copy of approved plans, the CEMP and relevant specifications and documents incorporating conditions of approval shall be kept on site at all times and shall be readily available for perusal by any officer of Council or relevant State Government Authorities.
- 33. The use of crushing plant machinery, mechanical screening or mechanical blending of materials is subject to separate development application.

[GEN0045

34. All imported fill material shall be from an approved source. Details of the source of fill, description of material, proposed use of material, documentary evidence that the fill material is free of any contaminants and haul route shall be submitted to Tweed Shire Council for the approval of the General Manager or his delegate.

[PCC0465]

- 35. During filling operations.
 - No filling is to be placed hydraulically within twenty metres (20m) of any boundary that adjoins private land that is separately owned. Fill adjacent to these boundaries is to be placed mechanically.
 - All fill and cut batters shall be contained wholly within the subject land.

and upon completion,

 all topsoil to be respread and the site to be grassed and landscaped including battered areas.

[DUR0755]

 The use of vibratory compaction equipment (other than hand held devices) within 100m of any dwelling house, building or structure is strictly prohibited.

[DUR0815]

37. The surrounding road carriageways are to be kept clean of any material carried onto the roadway by construction vehicles.

[DUR0995]

- 38. All work associated with this approval is to be carried out so as not to impact on the neighbourhood, adjacent premises or the environment. All necessary precautions, covering and protection shall be taken to minimise impact from: -
 - Noise, water or air pollution
 - dust during filling operations and also from construction vehicles
 - material removed from the site by wind

[DUR1005]

39. The burning off of trees and associated vegetation felled by clearing operations or builders waste is prohibited. Such materials shall either be recycled or disposed of in a manner acceptable to Councils General Manager or his delegate.

[DUR1015]

The Motion was Carried

FOR VOTE - Cr P Youngblutt, Cr W Polglase, Cr D Holdom, Cr B Longland, Cr J van Lieshout, Cr K Skinner AGAINST VOTE - Cr K Milne

11 [PR-CM] State Emergency Services/Unlimited Arts - Development of Site

288

Cr D Holdom
Cr P Youngblutt

RESOLVED that Council:

1. Seeks a short term licence over Reserve 89237 for the purpose of Site Investigation for a term of 12 months.

- 2. Undertakes a diligent investigation to determine whether there are suitable sites on Council-owned land in the Shire that might be utilised for SES purposes.
- 3. Pursues public consultation to show either:
 - (i) That there is a surplus of open space in the Terranora locality and Reserve 89237 that is not required for public recreation; or
 - (ii) That Reserve 89237 is required for public recreation but alternatives/offsets proposed by Council for the loss of public recreation space are acceptable to the community; or
 - (iii) That no alternatives/offsets are sought by the community for the loss of land for public recreation and open space; or
 - (iv) That the community will not accept alternatives/offsets offered by Council for the loss of open space and alternative sites for the SES facility will be pursued.

The Motion was **Carried**

FOR VOTE - Unanimous

12 [PR-CM] Development Application DA10/0556 for a Surf Lifesaving Outpost and Vehicle Access at Lot 7064 DP 1113596, Surfside Crescent, Pottsville

289

Cr D Holdom Cr P Youngblutt

RESOLVED that Development Application DA10/0556 for a surf lifesaving outpost and vehicle access at Lot 7064 DP 1113596, Surfside Crescent Pottsville be approved subject to the following conditions:

GENERAL

1. The development shall be completed in accordance with the Statement of Environmental Effects and Plan Nos RC10010, RC10010/03 and RC10010/04 prepared by Tweed Shire Council and dated 6/2010, except where varied by the conditions of this consent.

[GEN0005]

2. The issue of this Development Consent does not certify compliance with the relevant provisions of the Building Code of Australia.

[GEN0115]

3. Approval is given subject to the location of, protection of, and/or any necessary approved modifications to any existing public utilities situated

within or adjacent to the subject property. Any necessary adjustment or modification of existing services is to be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of the relevant Authority.

[GEN0135]

4. The development is to be carried out in accordance with Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications.

[GEN0265]

5. The facility shall be connected to reticulated town water and sewerage services.

[GENNS01]

5a. The building and roof is constructed in a non reflective neutral finish/colour to the satisfaction of the General Manager or his delegate.

PRIOR TO ISSUE OF CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE

6. A certificate of compliance (CC) under Sections 305, 306 and 307 of the Water Management Act 2000 is to be obtained from Council to verify that the necessary requirements for the supply of water and sewerage to the development have been made with the Tweed Shire Council.

Pursuant to Clause 146 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulations, 2000, a Construction Certificate shall NOT be issued by a Certifying Authority unless all Section 64 Contributions have been paid and the Certifying Authority has sighted Council's "Contribution Sheet" and a "Certificate of Compliance" signed by an authorised officer of Council.

Annexed hereto is an information sheet indicating the procedure to follow to obtain a Certificate of Compliance:

Water DSP6: 0.3 ET @ \$11020 per ET \$3306

Sewer Hastings Point: 0.45 ET @ \$5295 per ET \$2382.80

These charges to remain fixed for a period of twelve (12) months from the date of this consent and thereafter in accordance with the rates applicable in Council's adopted Fees and Charges current at the time of payment.

A CURRENT COPY OF THE CONTRIBUTION FEE SHEET ATTACHED TO THIS CONSENT <u>MUST</u> BE PROVIDED AT THE TIME OF PAYMENT.

Note: The Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 (as amended) makes no provision for works under the Water Management Act 2000 to be certified by an Accredited Certifier.

[PCC0265/PSC0165]

7. In accordance with Section 109F(i) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (as amended), a construction certificate for SUBDIVISION WORKS OR BUILDING WORKS shall NOT be issued until any long service levy payable under Section 34 of the Building and Construction Industry Long Service Payments Act, 1986 (or where such levy is payable by instalments, the first instalment of the levy) has been

paid. Council is authorised to accept payment. Where payment has been made elsewhere, proof of payment is to be provided.

[PCC0285]

8. A traffic control plan in accordance with AS1742 and RTA publication "Traffic Control at Work Sites" Version 2 shall be prepared by an RTA accredited person and shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to issue of the Construction Certificate. Safe public access shall be provided at all times.

[PCC0865]

- 9. Application shall be made to Tweed Shire Council under Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993 for works pursuant to this consent located within the road reserve. Application shall include engineering plans and specifications undertaken in accordance with Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications for the following required works:
 - (a) Vehicular access. In this regard the proposed driveway is to be constructed in concrete for the footpath crossing of Surfside Crescent. Furthermore, the submitted plans showing a driveway longitudinal section with a 10% gradient (across the footpath area), must be amended to provide for a compliant 2.5% gradient across the footpath area of Surfside Crescent.

The above mentioned engineering plan submission must include copies of compliance certificates relied upon and details relevant to but not limited to the following: -

- Road works/furnishings
- Stormwater drainage
- Water and sewerage works
- Sediment and erosion control plans
- Location of all services/conduits
- Traffic control plan

[PCC0895]

- 10. Permanent stormwater quality treatment shall be provided in accordance with the following:
 - (a) The Construction Certificate Application shall include a detailed stormwater management plan (SWMP) for the occupational or use stage of the development prepared in accordance with Section D7.07 of Councils Development Design Specification D7 Stormwater Quality.
 - (b) Permanent stormwater quality treatment shall comply with section 5.5.3 of the Tweed Urban Stormwater Quality Management Plan and Councils Development Design Specification D7 - Stormwater Quality.
 - (c) The stormwater and site works shall incorporate water sensitive design principles and where practical, integrated water cycle management.

- (d) Specific Requirements to be detailed within the Construction certificate application include:
 - (i) Shake down area along the haul route immediately before the intersection with the road reserve.

[PCC1105]

- 11. A construction certificate application for works that involve any of the following:
 - connection of a private stormwater drain to a public stormwater drain
 - installation of stormwater quality control devices
 - erosion and sediment control works

will not be approved until prior separate approval to do so has been granted by Council under S68 of the Local Government Act.

 Applications for these works must be submitted on Council's standard s68 stormwater drainage application form accompanied by the required attachments and the prescribed fee.

[PCC1145

- 12. Erosion and Sediment Control shall be provided in accordance with the following:
 - (a) The Construction Certificate Application must include a detailed erosion and sediment control plan prepared in accordance with Section D7.07 of Development Design Specification D7 - Stormwater Quality.
 - (b) Construction phase erosion and sediment control shall be designed, constructed and operated in accordance with Tweed Shire Council Development Design Specification D7 - Stormwater Quality and its Annexure A - "Code of Practice for Soil and Water Management on Construction Works".

[PCC1155]

13. An application shall be lodged together with any prescribed fees including inspection fees and approved by Tweed Shire Council under Section 68 of the Local Government Act for any water, sewerage, on site sewerage management system or drainage works including connection of a private stormwater drain to a public stormwater drain, installation of stormwater quality control devices or erosion and sediment control works, prior to the issue of a construction certificate.

[PCC1195]

14. Prior to the issue of a construction certificate and as a matter of courtesy, the applicant shall approach and obtain consent from the owner of Lot 40 DP 249208, for connection to the existing sewer main within the rear of that property.

[PCCNS01]

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK

15. The proponent shall accurately locate and identify any existing sewer main, stormwater line or other underground infrastructure within or

adjacent to the site and the Principal Certifying Authority advised of its location and depth prior to commencing works and ensure there shall be no conflict between the proposed development and existing infrastructure prior to start of any works.

[PCW0005]

- 16. The erection of a building in accordance with a development consent must not be commenced until:
 - (a) a construction certificate for the building work has been issued by the consent authority, the council (if the council is not the consent authority) or an accredited certifier, and
 - (b) the person having the benefit of the development consent has:
 - (i) appointed a principal certifying authority for the building work, and
 - (ii) notified the principal certifying authority that the person will carry out the building work as an owner-builder, if that is the case, and
 - (c) the principal certifying authority has, no later than 2 days before the building work commences:
 - (i) notified the consent authority and the council (if the council is not the consent authority) of his or her appointment, and
 - (ii) notified the person having the benefit of the development consent of any critical stage inspections and other inspections that are to be carried out in respect of the building work, and
 - (d) the person having the benefit of the development consent, if not carrying out the work as an owner-builder, has:
 - (i) appointed a principal contractor for the building work who must be the holder of a contractor licence if any residential work is involved, and
 - (ii) notified the principal certifying authority of any such appointment, and
 - (iii) unless that person is the principal contractor, notified the principal contractor of any critical stage inspection and other inspections that are to be carried out in respect of the building work.

IPCW02151

17. Prior to work commencing, a "Notice of Commencement of Building or Subdivision Work and Appointment of Principal Certifying Authority" shall be submitted to Council at least 2 days prior to work commencing.

[PCW0225

- 18. A temporary builder's toilet is to be provided prior to commencement of work at the rate of one (1) closet for every fifteen (15) persons or part of fifteen (15) persons employed at the site. Each toilet provided must be:
 - (a) a standard flushing toilet connected to a public sewer, or

 (b) if that is not practicable, an accredited sewage management facility approved by the council

[PCW0245]

- 19. Where prescribed by the provisions of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000, a sign must be erected in a prominent position on any site on which building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out:
 - (a) showing the name, address and telephone number of the principal certifying authority for the work, and
 - (b) showing the name of the principal contractor (if any) for any building work and a telephone number on which that person may be contacted outside working hours, and
 - (c) stating that unauthorised entry to the site is prohibited.

Any such sign is to be maintained while the building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out, but must be removed when the work has been completed.

[PCW0255]

20. Prior to commencement of work on the site all erosion and sedimentation control measures are to be installed and operational including the provision of a "shake down" area where required to the satisfaction of the Principal Certifying Authority.

[PCW0985]

DURING CONSTRUCTION

21. Construction and/or demolition site work including the entering and leaving of vehicles is limited to the following hours, unless otherwise permitted by Council: -

Monday to Saturday from 7.00am to 6.00pm

No work to be carried out on Sundays or Public Holidays

The proponent is responsible to instruct and control subcontractors regarding hours of work.

[DUR0205]

- 22. All reasonable steps shall be taken to muffle and acoustically baffle all plant and equipment. In the event of complaints from the neighbours, which Council deem to be reasonable, the noise from the construction site is not to exceed the following:
 - A. Short Term Period 4 weeks.

 $L_{Aeq,\ 15\ min}$ noise level measured over a period of not less than 15 minutes when the construction site is in operation, must not exceed the background level by more than 20dB(A) at the boundary of the nearest likely affected residence.

B. Long term period - the duration.

 $L_{\text{Aeq, }15 \text{ min}}$ noise level measured over a period of not less than 15 minutes when the construction site is in operation, must not exceed

the background level by more than 15dB(A) at the boundary of the nearest affected residence.

[DUR0215]

23. All building work (other than work relating to the erection of a temporary building) must be carried out in accordance with the requirements of the Building Code of Australia (as in force on the date the application for the relevant construction certificate was made).

[DUR0375]

24. The Principal Certifying Authority is to be given a minimum of 48 hours notice prior to any critical stage inspection or any other inspection nominated by the Principal Certifying Authority via the notice under Section 81A of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

IDUR0405

25. The site is considered potentially contaminated. No soil, sand, gravel, clay or other material shall be disposed of off the site without the prior written approval of Tweed Shire Council General Manager or his delegate.

[DUR0985]

26. The surrounding road carriageways are to be kept clean of any material carried onto the roadway by construction vehicles. Any work carried out by Council to remove material from the roadway will be at the Developers expense and any such costs are payable prior to the issue of a Subdivision Certificate/Occupation Certificate.

[DUR0995]

- 27. All work associated with this approval is to be carried out so as not to impact on the neighbourhood, adjacent premises or the environment. All necessary precautions, covering and protection shall be taken to minimise impact from: -
 - Noise, water or air pollution
 - dust during filling operations and also from construction vehicles
 - material removed from the site by wind

[DUR1005]

28. All practicable measures must be taken to prevent and minimise harm to the environment as a result of the construction, operation and, where relevant, the decommissioning of the development.

[DUR1025]

29. Any damage caused to public infrastructure (roads, footpaths, water and sewer mains, power and telephone services etc) during construction of the development shall be repaired in accordance with Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications prior to the issue of a Subdivision Certificate and/or prior to any use or occupation of the buildings.

[DUR1875]

30. Where the kerb is to be removed for driveway laybacks, stormwater connections, pram ramps or any other reason, the kerb must be sawcut on each side of the work to enable a neat and tidy joint to be constructed.

[DUR1905]

31. The builder must provide an adequate trade waste service to ensure that all waste material is contained, and removed from the site for the period of construction/demolition.

[DUR2185]

32. Regular inspections shall be carried out by the Supervising Engineer on site to ensure that adequate erosion control measures are in place and in good condition both during and after construction.

Additional inspections are also required by the Supervising Engineer after each storm event to assess the adequacy of the erosion control measures, make good any erosion control devices and clean up any sediment that has left the site or is deposited on public land or in waterways.

This inspection program is to be maintained until the maintenance bond is released or until Council is satisfied that the site is fully rehabilitated.

IDUR2375

33. All waters that are to be discharged from the site shall have a pH between 6.5 and 8.5 and suspended solids not greater than 50mg/l.

[DUR2435]

PRIOR TO ISSUE OF OCCUPATION CERTIFICATE

34. A person must not commence occupation or use of the whole or any part of a new building or structure (within the meaning of Section 109H(4)) unless an occupation certificate has been issued in relation to the building or part (maximum 25 penalty units).

[POC0205]

USE

35. The use to be conducted so as not to cause disruption to the amenity of the locality, particularly by way of the emission of noise, dust and odours or the like.

[USE0125]

36. All externally mounted air conditioning units and other mechanical plant or equipment are to be located so that any noise impact due to their operation which may be or is likely to be experienced by any neighbouring premises is minimised. Notwithstanding this requirement all air conditioning units and other mechanical plant and or equipment is to be acoustically treated or shielded where considered necessary to the satisfaction of the General Manager or his delegate such that the operation of any air conditioning unit, mechanical plant and or equipment does not result in the emission of offensive or intrusive noise.

[USE0175]

37. All externally mounted artificial lighting, including security lighting, is to be shielded to the satisfaction of the General Manager or his delegate where

necessary or required so as to prevent the spill of light or glare creating a nuisance to neighbouring or adjacent premises.

[USE0225]

38. Any vehicles that remain on site for periods in excess of two (2) minutes are required to switch off their engines.

[USE0255]

39. Following completion of a satisfactory post earth work surface radiation survey excavations or disturbances greater than 500mm below the ground surface are not permissible without the separate written approval of Council.

[USENS01]

40. Following the completion of construction and prior to commencement of use a post earth work surface radiation validation survey shall be completed and reported to Council to the satisfaction of the General Manager or his delegate (covering as a minimum the construction area and associated beach access tracks). Surface radiation levels shall not exceed the relevant NSW Health Action level Criteria.

[USENS02]

NSW RURAL FIRE SERVICE

Asset Protection Zones

The intent of measures is to minimise the risk of bush fire attack and provide protection for emergency services personnel, residents and others assisting fire fighting activities.

 At the commencement of building works and in perpetuity the property to the east and south of the building to a distance of 15 meters, shall be maintained as an inner protection area (IPA) as outlined within section 4.1.3 and Appendix 5 of 'Planning for Bush Fire Protection 2006' and the NSW Rural Fire Service's document 'Standards for asset protection zones'.

Water and Utilities

The intent of measures is to minimise the risk of bush fire attack and provide protection for emergency services personnel, residents and others assisting fire fighting activities.

2. Water, electricity and gas are to comply with section 4.1.3 of 'Planning for Bush Fire Protection 2006'.

Access

The intent of measures for internal roads is to provide safe operational access to/from the public road system for fire fighters providing property protection during a bush fire and for occupants faced with evacuation.

3. Property access roads shall comply with section 4.1.3 of 'Planning for Bush Fire Protection 2006'.

Design and Construction

The intent of measures is that buildings are designed and constructed to withstand the potential impacts of bush fire attack.

- 4. Roller doors, tilt-a-doors and other such doors shall be sealed to prevent the entry of embers into the building.
- 5. New construction shall comply with section 7 (BAL 29) Australian Standard AS3959-2009 "Construction of buildings in bush fire-prone areas" and section A3.7 Addendum Appendix 3 of "Planning for Bush Fire Protection". The northern and western elevations shall comply with section 6 (BAL 19) Australian Standard AS3959-2009 "Construction of buildings in bush fire-prone areas" and section A3.7 Addendum Appendix 3 of "Planning for Bush Fire Protection".

The Motion was Carried

FOR VOTE - Unanimous

